
 

Page 1 of 5 

  City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
MONDAY, JUNE 3, 2024 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
7:30 P.M. 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS  

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 

 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 

• March 18, 2024, Regular Meeting 
• December 4, 2023, Executive Session  

 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

  
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
 

ORDERS 
 
11292 – An Order Appropriating $320,000.00 from Free Cash to the DPW Snow and 

Ice Removal Expense Account (Finance Committee) 
 
11293 – An Order Appropriating $35,000.00 from Free Cash to DPW Repairs and 

Maintenance Expense Account (Finance Committee) 
 
11294 – An Order Appropriating $24,000.00 from Free Cash to DPW Energy and 

Utilities Account (Finance Committee) 
 
11295 – An Order Appropriating $50,000.00 from Free Cash to Mayor's Unclassified 

Termination Leave Expense Account (Finance Committee) 
 

 



 

Page 2 of 5 

11296 – An Order Appropriating $4,000.00 from Free Cash to Ambulance Repairs and 
Maintenance Account (Finance Committee) 

 
11297 – An Order Appropriating $7,000.00 from Free Cash to Airport Various 

Expense Accounts (Finance Committee) 
 
APPOINTMENTS 
 
11298 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Dr. Stephanie Marchetti, 

to the position of Redevelopment Authority Member, for term expiring July 1, 
2029. (Appointments Committee) 

 
IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 
X. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES   
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

11256 – A Resolution to Rename the City Council Chamber "The Ronald F. Cormier 
Council Chamber." (Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack; More Time 
4/16/2024; Referred to Finance 5/6/2024; More Time 5/20/2024) 

 
11275 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 560 thereof 

entitled “Solid Waste,” to Change the Fee for Solid Waste Collection. (In the 
City Council and Referred to Finance Committee, 5/6/2024, In the City 
Council and Ordered to 1st Printing 5/20/2024, 1st Printing 5/24/2024) 

 
11286 – An Order Appropriating $30,000.00 from Free Cash to the Mayor’s 

Unclassified – S. Graves vs City Lawsuit Expense Account (In the City 
Council and Referred to Finance 5/20/2024) 

 
11289 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Part 1, thereof 

entitled “Administrative Legislation.” (In the City Council Referred to Finance 
Committee, 5/20/2024) 

 
 APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 
 11139 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Bettez, to the 

position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
11140 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Swartz, to the 

position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 



 

Page 3 of 5 

11141 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Stephen Cormier, to the 
position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In 
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024) 

 
 11255 - A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Vincent Pusateri, to the 

position of Assistant City Solicitor, for term expiring January 1, 2025. (In the 
City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 4/16/2024) 

 
SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
11115 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets.” – Douglas Road. (In the City Council & Referred to Safety 
Committee 12/18/2023; More Time 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024, 2/20/2024, 
3/4/2024, 3/18/2024, 4/1/2024,4/16/2024, 5/6/2024, 5/20/2024) 

 
11204 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Edgell Street, from Elm Street to Lawrence Street. (More 
Time 3/18/2024, 4/1/2024,4/16/2024, 5/6/2024, 5/20/2024) 

 
 WELFARE COMMITTEE 
 

11211 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, to add a new 
Chapter 15 to be entitled “Agricultural Commission.” (In the City Council 
and Referred to Welfare Committee 3/18/2024; More Time 4/1/2024, 
4/16/2024, 5/6/2024, 5/20/2024) 

 
11276 – An Ordinance to Amend Section 4 of Chapter 182 of the Code of the City of 

Gardner, thereof entitled “Zoning Board of Appeals,” to increase the number 
of members from 3 to 5. (In the City Council and Referred to Welfare 
Committee 5/6/2024; Ordered to 1st Printing 5/20/2024, 1st Printing 
5/24/2024) 

 
 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE  
 

11261 – A Measure Authorizing FY2025 Revolving Funds for the City Pursuant to 
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E ½. (In the City Council 
and Referred to the Committee of the Whole 5/6/2024, More Time 5/20/2024) 

 
11262 – An Order to Raise and Appropriate the sum of $13,665,414.45 for the Various 

Departments of the City for the Salary and Labor Budget for the Fiscal Year 
Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. (In the City Council and 
Referred to the Committee of the Whole 5/6/202, More Time 5/20/2024) 

 
11263 – An Order to Raise and Appropriate the sum of $27,036,114.27 for the Various 

Departments of the City for the Expense Budget for the Fiscal Year 



 

Page 4 of 5 

Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. (In the City Council and 
Referred to the Committee of the Whole 5/6/202, More Time 5/20/2024) 

 
11264 – An Order Appropriating the Sum of $34,212,226.00 for the School 

Department Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending 
June 30, 2025. (In the City Council and Referred to the Committee of the 
Whole 5/6/2024, More Time 5/20/2024) 

 
11265 – An Order Appropriating the Sum of $201,162.73 from Available Funds- 

Cable Commission Fees Reserved to Cable Commission Budget for the Fiscal 
Year Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. (In the City Council 
and Referred to the Committee of the Whole 5/6/2024, More Time 5/20/2024) 

 
11266 – An Order Appropriating the Sum of $10,819,080.00 from Available 

Enterprise Funds – Various Receipts Reserved to Various Enterprise 
Accounts for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 
2025. (In the City Council and Referred to the Committee of the Whole 
5/6/2024, More Time 5/20/2024) 

 
11267 – An Order Appropriating the Sum of $170,000.00 from Available Funds- Bond 

Proceeds Reserved to Interest-Outside Debt for the Fiscal Year Beginning 
July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. (In the City Council and Referred to 
the Committee of the Whole 5/6/2024, More Time 5/20/2024) 

 
11268 – An Order Authorizing a Transfer of the sum of $322,709.43 from Sewer 

Retained Earnings/Surplus to Fund the FY2025 Revenue Budget. (In the City 
Council and Referred to the Committee of the Whole 5/6/2024, More Time 
5/20/2024)  

 
11269 – An Order Authorizing the Transfer of the sum of $93,687.00 from Landfill 

Retained Earnings/Surplus to fund the FY2025 Revenue Budget.  (In the City 
Council and Referred to the Committee of the Whole 5/6/2024, More Time 
5/20/2024) 

 
11287 – An Order to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, thereof 

entitled “Personnel” to change the compensation schedule, Exhibit E Non-
Union Personnel.  (In the City Council and Referred to the Committee of the 
Whole 5/20/2024) 

 
XI.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 
XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
XIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS 
 
XIV. CLOSING PRAYER 
 



 

Page 5 of 5 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 
 
 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Monday evening, March 18, 2024.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Eleven (11) Councillors were present 
including Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 
Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros.   
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

#11199 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas opened the Public Hearing on a petition by National Grid and 
Verizon New England, Inc., Allen Street – to install 1 Jointly Owned Pole on Allen Street 
beginning at a point approximately 430 feet west of the centerline of the intersection of 
Allen Street and Winslow Street. Install 1 Jointly Owned Pole #7 for new houses. 
 
The President called for persons wishing to testify in favor of the Petition. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

No one spoke in favor. 
 
The President thrice called for persons wishing to testify in opposition. There being none, 
President Kazinskas closed the hearing at 7:34 PM. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
APPONTMENTS 

 
#11129 
Taken out of order. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to 
CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Dane Arnold, to the position of Public 
Works Director, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11130 
Taken out of order. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Brad Heglin and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy 
Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, and Paul Tassone, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
Councillor George Tyros recused himself due to a conflict of interest. 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Michael F. Ellis, to the position of 
Senior Citizen’s Director, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
A recess was taken to administer the oaths of office at 7:40 PM. Meeting resumed at 7:43 PM. 
 

 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
APPOINTMENTS 

 
#11207 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to 
REFER to the Appointments Committee for further study and report, A Measure Confirming 
the Mayor’s Appointment of Linda Dembek, to the position of Disability Commission 
Member, for term expiring March 4, 2027. 

 
COMMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

#11208 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 
George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to 
GRANT, A Measure Authorizing the FY2024 Community Development Block Grant Mini 
Entitlement Plan. 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

FY 2024 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Mini-Entitlement Plan 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY TIIE CITY COUNCIL OF TIIE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposals prepared by the Department of 
Community Development and Planning for inclusion within the FY 2024 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Mini-Entitlement Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CDBG proposals seek funding for support of public social services, 
demolition, and associated administrative costs; and 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

WHEREAS, the activities proposed within the FY 2024 CDBG Mini-Entitlement Plan meet 
the priorities identified within the City's 2022-2025 Community Development Strategy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City does not possess the bonding capacity or have the availability of funds 
to appropriate from its general budget to undertake such projects and reliance upon grant 
funds is required, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council supports each of the activities as being consistent with the 
City's goal of promoting quality programs for its citizens; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City Council hereby extends its support of each proposed activity 
and endorses the City's FY 2024 CDBG Mini-Entitlement Plan to be submitted to the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Department of Housing and Community Development. 
 

COMMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
ORDERS 

 
#11209 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Judy 
Mack, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to 
REFER to Finance Committee for further study and report, An Order Appropriating 
$77,318.00 from Free Cash to the IT Department – City Hall Cyber Security System Account. 
 
#11210 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Judy 
Mack, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to 
REFER to Finance Committee for further study and report, An Order Appropriating 
$49,000.00 from Free Cash to the Mayor’s Unclassified Professional Services Grant Writing 
Expense. 
 
#11213 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Judy 
Mack, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to 
REFER to Finance Committee for further study and report, An Order Appropriating 
$55,500.00 from Free Cash to the Elections & Registration Department for Election Officer 
Salary and Professional Services Expenses. 
 

COMMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
ORDINANCE 

 
#11211 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to 
REFER to Welfare Committee, An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, to 
add a new Chapter 15 to be entitled “Agricultural Commission.” 

 
PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 

 
#11203 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 
was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, 
Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to send to first printing, 
as amended, An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled 
“Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 41, Entitled “Handicapped Parking” – Central Street, from a 
point 33 feet from the corner of Maple Street eastly for 40 feet (2 spaces). 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 41, ENTITLED “HANDICAPPED PARKING”  
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:  
 
SECTION 1: Section 41, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Handicapped 
parking” be amended by adding the following:  
 
Name of Street   Side     Location 
Central St   North    From a point 33 feet from the corner of  

Maple Street easterly for 40 feet (2 spaces) 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11204 
Councillor Craig Cormier requested MORE TIME on An Ordinance to Amend the Code of 
the City of Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled 
“Parking Prohibited on Certain Streets” – Edgell Street, from Elm Street to Lawrence Street 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 
#11205 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 
was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, 
Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to send to first printing, 
An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles 
and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on Certain Streets” – Park Street, from 
Cottage Street to Central Street. 
 
#11206 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad 
Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to send to first 
printing, An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled 
“Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on Certain Streets” – Pine 
Street, from West Lynde Street southerly for a distance of 50 feet. 
 
#11212 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Judy 
Mack, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul Tassone, and George Tyros to 
REFER to Finance Committee for further study and report, Election of the City Clerk. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 

 
#11127 
Councillor George Tyros requested for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Thomas Zuppa, to the position of Building Commissioner, for term expiring January 
9, 2027. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11134 
On a motion made by Councillor Dana Heath and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted 
viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul 
Tassone, and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
Councillor Brad Heglin recused due to a conflict of interest. 
 
A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Carla J. Wojtukiewcz, to the position of Trustee, 
Williams-Rockwell Educational Gift Fund, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11135 
On a motion made by Councillor Dana Heath and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted 
viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz, Paul 
Tassone, and George Tyros, to CONFIRM the Mayor’s appointment: 
 
Councillor Brad Heglin recused due to a conflict of interest. 
 
Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Rice, Esq., to the position of Trustee, 
Williams-Rockwell Educational Gift Fund, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
#11139 
Councillor George Tyros requested for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Robert Bettez, to the position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 
4, 2027. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11140 
Councillor George Tyros requested for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Robert Swartz, to the position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 
4, 2027. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11141 
Councillor George Tyros requested for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Stephen Cormier, to the position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 
4, 2027. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 8 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11142 
Councillor George Tyros requested for MORE TIME on, Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Charles LeBlanc, to the position of Board of Assessors, for term expiring January 4, 
2027. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11143 
Councillor George Tyros requested for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Rick Germano, to the position of Local Inspector, for term expiring January 4, 2027. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11144 
Councillor George Tyros requested for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of James E. Imprescia, to the position of Plumbing & Gas Inspector, for term expiring 
January 4, 2027. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 
#11150 
Councillor George Tyros requested for MORE TIME on, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s 
Appointment of Timothy Horrigan, to the position of Redevelopment Authority, for term expiring 
January 8, 2027. 
 
There were no objections. More time was granted. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
#11086 
Councillor Craig Cormier requested MORE TIME on An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 
Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Comee Street. 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 9 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11115 
Councillor Craig Cormier requested MORE TIME on An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 
Gardner Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets.” – Douglas Road. 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
SERVICE COMMITTEE 

 
#11199 
Councillor Paul Tassone requested MORE TIME on, A Petition by National Grid and Verizon New 
England, Inc., Allen Street – to install 1 Jointly Owned Pole on Allen Street beginning at a point 
approximately 430 feet west of the centerline of the intersection of Allen Street and Winslow Street. 
Install 1 Jointly Owned Pole #7 for new house. 
 
There were no objections, more time was granted. 
 

UNFINISTHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 

#11112 
On a motion made by Councillor Dana Heath and seconded by Councillor David Thibault-
Muñoz, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros  to 
send to FINAL PRINTING, An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, 
Chapter 675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses. 
 
#11113 
President Kazinskas informed the Council clarification of the previous City Council meeting 
on March 4th, she announced that a 2/3 majority vote was required for this item, eight (8) 
votes to pass. The initial vote on the motion for the item to be sent to first printing and the 
results were seven (7) yeas, and three (3) nays. The President announced that the item did 
not pass. This was incorrect and she misspoke and apologize for the error. Chapter 40A, 
Section 5 of Mass General Laws states that no zoning ordinance or amendment thereto shall 
be adopted or changed except by a 2/3 of all the members of a city council. Under the City 
Charter, the initial vote was to send the item to first printing, which requires a majority vote 
of six (6) members to pass. 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

On a motion made by Councillor Dana Heath and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted on call of the roll, eight (8) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas 
and Councillors Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Paul 
Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros; three (3) nays, Councillors Calvin 
Brooks,  Karen Hardern, and  Judy Mack, to send to FINAL PRINTING – An Ordinance to 
Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Amend 
Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments” to Change the Method to Increase 
the Quota Allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner. 
 
#11180 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it 
was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad 
Heglin, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros that the 
following order ought to pass: 
 
AN ORDER APPROPRIATING FROM STABILIZATION TO DPW SALT SHED 
 
ORDERED:  That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Six Hundred Twenty-Five 
Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($625,000.00) from Stabilization to DPW Salt Shed. 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Paul Tassone and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was 
voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, 
Paul Tassone, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to adjourn at 8:25 p.m. 
 
 

Accepted by the City Council: 



11292



11292



11293



11293



11294



11294



11295



11295



11296



11296



11297



11297



11298



11256



11256



From: Elizabeth Kazinskas
To: Titi Siriphan
Subject: Fw: Ulric Fredette Plaque
Date: Friday, May 3, 2024 2:33:15 PM
Attachments: Fredette Plaque Votes.pdf

Good afternoon Clerk Siriphan,

Please print and distribute both Councillor Brooks’ email and the attachment to the City
Councillors at Monday’s meeting.

Best,
Lizzy

Elizabeth Kazinskas
City Council President
Finance Committee Chair
Councillor at-Large
City of Gardner
(978) 337-1533
ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov

From: Calvin Brooks <cbrooks@gardner-ma.gov>
Sent: Friday, May 3, 2024 8:52 AM
To: Elizabeth Kazinskas <ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov>; Judy Mack <jmack@gardner-ma.gov>
Subject: Ulric Fredette Plaque

Councilors--I did a little research on the plaque honoring Ulric Fredette that hangs in the
Council Chamber.

Former City Councilor and Mayor Ulric Fredette died on October 2, 1966.
A committee was subsequently formed to propose a suitable monument in his honor.
At the April 16, 1967 City Council meeting, the committee proposed that City Council
Chambers be named in his honor and that a plaque be installed. (Item #8124) On
June 19, 1967 the item was amended to include a request for an appropriation from
the mayor in the amount of $400 to cover the cost of the plaque. No action having
been taken by the mayor, the motion was reaffirmed by City Council on September 5,
1967.
On October 16, 1967, City Council took two votes on the matter. The first motion was
to clarify City Council intent in regard to naming Council Chambers. City Council
voted to rescind any statement in regard to naming Council Chambers for Mr.
Fredette. This motion passed by a show of hands 6 to 5. The second motion was to
send a letter to the mayor advising that any statement with reference to naming

Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks

mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov
tel:(978) 337-1533
mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov



































Council Chambers for Mr. Fredette had been rescinded and again requesting an
order for $400 for placing a plaque in Mr. Fredette’s honor.
The mayor subsequently submitted a money order for $400, and City Council
approved same on November 20, 1967. (Order #4507)

I have attached copies of the appropriate minutes, etc.

I thought this information would be helpful. I don't know why they chose to not name
Council Chambers after Mr. Fredette. I was only twelve at the time!

– Calvin

Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks



Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks



Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks



Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks



Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks



Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks



Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks



Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks



Submitted by Councillor Calvin Brooks



Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack



Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack



Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack



Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack



Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack



Submitted by Councillor Judy Mack



11275



11275



11286



11286



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11139



11140



11141



11255



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” be amended by adding the following 

Name of Street Side Loca�on 
Douglas Rd  South From Coleman Street westerly for a distance 

of 30 feet 

11115



CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT 
200 Main Street 

Gardner, MA 01440 
Phone (978) 632-5600 

Fax (978) 630-9045 

Eric P. McAvene       Nicholas P. Maroni 
Chief of Police  Deputy Chief of Police 

Date: 12/5/2023 

To Councilor Cormier, Committee Chairman, and members of the Public Safety Committee, 

The Traffic Committee met on November 28,2023 and discussed a few changes and 

recommendations to increase the safety of the City’s roadways. The following are the changes 

and recommendations the Traffic Committee voted on, unanimously (6 of 6) to send to the 

Public Safety Committee for review.  

1. City Ordinance change to §600-24 (Parking prohibited on certain Streets) due to parking

spots being eliminated by new construction around Monument Park.

Name of Street  Side  Location 

Park Street   South  From Cottage Street to Central St 

2. Temporary 60 Day restricted parking trial on the North side of Edgell St to Westford St.

3. Recommended eliminating parking 30 ft southerly side of Douglas Rd.

The commission appreciates your attention to these matters and members can be made available 

if further clarification is needed. Photos of the proposed areas have been attached.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nicholas Maroni 

Deputy Chief of Police/ Traffic Committee Commissioner 

CC: Traffic Commission members, City Clerk 

11115



11115



11115



11115



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” be amended by adding the following 

Name of Street Side Loca�on 
Edgell Street  North From Elm Street to Lawrence Street 

11204



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11211



11276



11276



11261



11261



11261



11262



11262



11263



AN ORDER TO RAISE AND APPROPRIATE A SUM OF MONEY FOR THE 
VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS FOR THE EXPENSE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2024 TO JUNE 30, 2025. 
 

ORDERED: 

 To raise and appropriate for the expense of the City of Gardner for the Fiscal Year 

beginning July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 sums as designated for the expenditures of the 

various departments, other than what was presented to City Council in the Salary and 

Labor budget, according to the detailed schedule hereto annexed and made a part of this 

money order in the amount of TWENTY-SEVEN MILLION,  THIRTY-SIX 

THOUSAND, ONE HUNDRED FOURTEEN DOLLARS 27/100 CENTS 

($27,036,114.27)  

11263



11264



11264



11265



11265



11266



11266



11267



11267



11268



11268



11269



11269



11287



11287



11287



11287



11287


	03-18-2024 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	#11199
	President Elizabeth Kazinskas opened the Public Hearing on a petition by National Grid and Verizon New England, Inc., Allen Street – to install 1 Jointly Owned Pole on Allen Street beginning at a point approximately 430 feet west of the centerline of ...
	The President called for persons wishing to testify in favor of the Petition.
	No one spoke in favor.
	The President thrice called for persons wishing to testify in opposition. There being none, President Kazinskas closed the hearing at 7:34 PM.
	COMMUNICATIONS
	#11208
	On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern,...
	RESOLUTION
	FY 2024 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
	Mini-Entitlement Plan
	BE IT RESOLVED BY TIIE CITY COUNCIL OF TIIE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:
	WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposals prepared by the Department of Community Development and Planning for inclusion within the FY 2024 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Mini-Entitlement Plan; and
	WHEREAS, the CDBG proposals seek funding for support of public social services, demolition, and associated administrative costs; and
	WHEREAS, the activities proposed within the FY 2024 CDBG Mini-Entitlement Plan meet the priorities identified within the City's 2022-2025 Community Development Strategy; and
	WHEREAS, the City does not possess the bonding capacity or have the availability of funds to appropriate from its general budget to undertake such projects and reliance upon grant funds is required, and
	WHEREAS, the City Council supports each of the activities as being consistent with the City's goal of promoting quality programs for its citizens;
	NOW THEREFORE, the City Council hereby extends its support of each proposed activity and endorses the City's FY 2024 CDBG Mini-Entitlement Plan to be submitted to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Department of Housing and Community Development.
	COMMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR
	ORDERS
	#11209
	On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Da...
	#11210
	On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Da...
	#11213
	On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Da...
	ORDINANCE
	#11211
	On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Da...




